
 

 
 
 

Delegated Decisions by Cabinet Member for Adult 
Services 
 
Tuesday, 2 March 2010 at 12.00 pm 
 
Meeting Room 2, County Hall 
 

Items for Decision 
 
The items for decision under individual Cabinet Members’ delegated powers are listed 
overleaf, with indicative timings, and the related reports are attached.  Decisions taken 
will become effective at the end of the working day on 10 March 2010 unless called in by 
that date for review by the appropriate Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Copies of the reports are circulated (by e-mail) to all members of the County Council. 
 
These proceedings are open to the public 
 

 
 
 
 
Note:  Date of next meeting: 7 April 2010 
 
 
 
 
If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of 
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer 
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 
 
 

 
Tony Cloke  
Assistant Head of Legal & Democratic Services February 2010 
 
 
Contact Officer: 

 
 
Kath Coldwell 
Tel: (01865) 815902; E-Mail: kath.coldwell@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



Page 2  
 

 

 

Items for Decision 
 

1. Questions from County Councillors  
 Any county councillor may, by giving notice to the Proper Officer by 9 am on the 

working day before the meeting, ask a question on any matter in respect of the 
Cabinet Member’s delegated powers. 
 
The number of questions which may be asked by any councillor at any one 
meeting is limited to two (or one question with notice and a supplementary 
question at the meeting) and the time for questions will be limited to 30 minutes in 
total. As with questions at Council, any questions which remain unanswered at the 
end of this item will receive a written response. 
 
Questions received after the despatch of the agenda, but before the deadline, will 
be shown on the Schedule of Addenda circulated at the meeting, together with any 
written response which is available at that time.  

 

2. Declarations of Interest  

3. Petitions and Public Address  
 EXEMPT ITEM 

It is RECOMMENDED that the public be excluded during consideration of the 
annexes to report CMDAS4 (since it is likely that if they were present during 
their consideration there would be disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended) and specified below in relation to that item: 

3. Information relating to the financial and business affairs of any particular person 
including the authority withholding that information 

and since it is considered that, in all the circumstances of the case, the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, on the grounds that such disclosure would 
prejudice the commercial position of the parties involved and would prejudice 
the position of the authority’s investments to the detriment of the Council’s 
ability properly to discharge its fiduciary and other duties as a public 
authority. 

Note: The report itself does not contain exempt information and is therefore 
available to the public. 

The exempt information is contained in confidential annexes to the report that 
have been circulated only to those members and officers entitled to receive 
them. 

THE ANNEXES HAVE NOT BEEN MADE PUBLIC AND SHOULD BE 
REGARDED AS STRICTLY PRIVATE TO THOSE MEMBERS AND OFFICERS 
ENTITLED TO RECEIVE THEM. 

  



Page 3  
 

 

 

4. Oxfordshire Carer's Centre (Pages 1 - 14) 
 Contact Officers: John Pearce, Service Manager, Strategic Commissioning, 

Tel: (01865) 323619; Lajla Johansson, Services and Policy Development 
Manager, Tel: (01865) 323622 
12:00 pm 
 
The Cabinet Member for Adult Services is RECOMMENDED to approve an 
exemption from the tendering requirements of the County Council’s Contract 
Procedure Rules, to enable the Council to award a one-year extension of 
existing contracts to North & West Carers Centre, Oxford City Carers Centre 
and South and Vale Carers Centre, to 31 March 2011, in order to ensure 
service continuity, subject to a full tender process being carried out within the 
1 year period of the interim contract. 
  

 

 

 
 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



CMDASMAR0210R021.doc 

Division(s): N/A 
 

CABINET MEMBER FOR ADULT SERVICES – 2 MARCH 2010 
 

REQUEST FOR AN EXEMPTION FROM THE TENDERING 
REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES IN 

RESPECT TO OXFORDSHIRE CARERS CENTRES 
 

Report by Director for Social & Community Services 
 

Background 
 
1. Social & Community Services have supported the development of support for 

carers for many years. Support available through the County took on a more 
formal nature with the inception of the carer’s grant in 1999.   

 
2. Service contracts were let for the provision of support for carers, and then 

extended until April 2010. These services had not been formally reviewed or 
market tested. 

 
3. Following a review, issues concerning the under identification of carers, the 

duplication of overheads (and services) and the inconsistent provision of 
services was highlighted. 

 
4. The current Carers Support Specification was developed in consultation with 

carers and providers following a review of services. It requires the delivery of 
services that achieved the following outcomes for carers in line with the 
national carer’s strategy.  

 
Outcomes 

 
• Carers will be respected as expert care partners and will have access to 

the integrated and personalised services  
• Carers will be able to have a life of their own alongside their caring role 
• Carers will be supported so they are not forced into financial hardship  
• Carers will be supported to stay mentally and physically well and treated 

with dignity; 
 
5. To achieve these outcomes we specified that bidders demonstrate how they 

would deliver services against the following broad areas: 
 

• Information, advice and support including outcome planning for carers. 
• Access, sign posting and system navigation    
• Administration of carers funding (Small direct grants)  
• Organised trips and activities 
• Volunteer befriending Service  
• Carers Support Groups  
• Raising awareness of Carers’ issues:  
• Identifying new and hidden carers  

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



CMDAS4 
 
 

CMDASMAR0210R021.doc 

 
6. Further to the requirements of the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules the 

current procurement was established in March 2009. 
 

Further Developments that have Impacted on the 
Procurement 

 
7. These specific services let in the advertised manner under this procurement 

are now significantly affected by the following subsequent decisions. These 
actual decisions give rise to new structures and options. These new options 
were not developed at the time the Carers support Service needed to go 
through a sign off of the specification for the Invitation to tender in October 
2009. 

 
Corporate Call Centre 
 

8. Strategic development agreed December 2009. Phase one from July 2010. 
The Social & Community Services (S&CS) Access Team may provide 
enhanced services to carers. The full business specification is still to be 
agreed. Carers will have access to information and advice within this universal 
Call centre.  

 
Impact on current specification: 
The Carers Support Service specification is currently specified to deliver 
Information and Advice to carers in Oxfordshire. This aspect could potentially 
be delivered more strategically through a corporate call centre with some 
dedicated support functions for carers. This would represent good value for 
money and ensure that carers have access to information, which is relevant to 
their whole lives such as housing, transport and leisure etc. 

 
Brokerage Service 
 

9. Developed under Transforming Adult Social Care. The business case for the 
current procurement was agreed in September 2009.  It was agreed then to 
go out to tender for between 22k – 58k hours of brokerage. The invitation to 
tender for this specification has yet to be sent out.  
 
Impact on current specification: 
Information and advice and low level benefits advice service to carers. The 
brokerage specification offers this support to carers who are arranging care 
for their cared for person. This is duplication of provision for the FACS eligible 
carers.  
 
Centre for Independent Living (CIL) 

 
10. A development grant was secured in August 2009.  When the service 

specification for the Carers Support Service was developed there was at that 
point not a final decision on the priority being given to this development  

 

Page 2



CMDAS4 
 
 

CMDASMAR0210R021.doc 

Impact on current specification: 
The Carers Support Service specification is currently specified to deliver 
information and advice to all carers.  This is identified as a service that a 
Centre for Independent Living can deliver. This is a duplication of provision for 
carers of Non FACS eligible carers  
 
Good Neighbourhood Schemes 

 
11. The development of the Good Neighbourhood Schemes under the 

Community and Capacity Building Strategy currently rests with the 
Community Development Team. These schemes recruit and train volunteers, 
who deliver small repairs, help to get to appointments (GP, hospitals etc.), 
picking up prescriptions, shopping, and short breaks to carers. The volunteers 
do however not deliver personal care. During the past six months the 
developments of these schemes has taken off and there are now a number 
schemes across Oxfordshire, which deliver low level support to Oxfordshire 
residents. 

 
12. During the consultation on the service Specification meetings were held with 

the Community Development Team and we were advised at that time that the 
Good Neighbourhood Schemes were not at that point developed enough to 
take on this aspect  

 
Impact on current specification: 
The current specification has the delivery of short breaks built in through the 
Befriending Sitting Service. This is a duplication of services and no longer 
good value for money as this is also being delivered by the Good 
Neighbourhood schemes.  Linking the delivery of short breaks (where no 
personal care is required) with the Good Neighbourhood Schemes would 
ensure that carers would have access to a much broader range of support 
from volunteers and greater opportunities for volunteering options could be 
developed.  Carers would receive support from their local communities rather 
than having to go to carers centres to receive this support.  This proposed 
change would also be in line with our strategic direction of travel both under 
the Prevention Strategy and the emerging Ageing Successfully Strategy.  
 
Reasons for Request for Exemption from Tendering and 
Ceasing Procurement Process 

 
Current Specification Limitations 
 

13. The initial Specification offered to the market did not segment out and offer a 
breakdown of different options to bidders. This has limited the field of possible 
providers.  Few bidders were interested to provide these services this 
exercise has not produced a strong market response. Any new specification 
needs to be offered in a way to allow bidding for different parts of the service 
to provide:  

 

Page 3



CMDAS4 
 
 

CMDASMAR0210R021.doc 

• Outreach  to a significant majority of carers in Oxfordshire by raising 
awareness  

• Information and sign posting 
• Face to face support to the most vulnerable carers 
• Administration of small direct payments  

 
14. Consultation on the approach and actual specification, whilst extensive with 

providers and some carers didn’t engage sufficiently with carers. 
 

Future Procurement Strategy - New Specification Required 
 
15. We adjust the services on offer to avoid duplication of services. 
 
16. We determine if it would be better to offer a number of options (Lots) to 

procure rather than just one.  Our future specification will split the elements so 
that we get a broad range of providers expressing an interest in delivering 
services.  

 
17. We ensure greater involvement from carers. 
 
18. A new Carers Support Service specification would have a much stronger 

emphasis on prevention and would primarily be to deliver support to carers 
who are not Fair Access to Care Services (FACS) eligible. 

 
19. The New Specification should fulfil the gaps where the other service 

specifications are not delivering necessary services as identified in the 
Oxfordshire Carers Strategy, such as: 

 
• Fulfil our duties under s.2 of the Carers Equal Opportunities Act in 

identifying hidden carers 
• Raising Awareness of carers issues to Oxfordshire’s general 

population and local employers 
• Provide low level emotional support and training for carers 
• Deliver short breaks and Carers Services to non FACS eligible carers 
• Form close working relationships with GP practices, hospitals and 

Case Managers working in GP consortias to identify hidden carers 
• Signpost Carers to Information and Advice givers, Brokerage where 

appropriate and universal services. 
 
20. In the medium term it is envisaged that there will still be a discrete carers 

support service delivering the above, but it will be a smaller service as many 
aspects of the current service specification can be delivered through the 
above named strategic developments. 

 
21. In the longer term a further review will need to take place. This will establish 

the need for a dedicated carers support service or whether all aspects of the 
identified carers’ priorities can be delivered by the major strategic 
developments within Transforming Adult Social Care such as Self Directed 

Page 4



CMDAS4 
 
 

CMDASMAR0210R021.doc 

Care, Brokerage, Information and Advice work stream, and the Community 
and Capacity Building strategy. 

 
Specific Exemptions Requested 

 
22. Award of a one-year contract extension to the existing providers (North & 

West Carers Centre, Oxford City Carers Centre and South and Vale Carers 
Centre) to continue the existing level of service allowing a new service 
specification to be developed, consulted on and procured. 

 
Reason why the Annexes are Exempt 

 
The public should be excluded during consideration of the annexes to this 
report because discussion of them in public would be likely to lead to the 
disclosure to members of the public present of information in the following 
categories as prescribed by Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government 
Act 1972 (as amended): 
 
3.  Information relating to the financial and business affairs of any 

particular person including the authority withholding that information 
 
and since it is considered that, in all the circumstances of the case, the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, in that such disclosure would prejudice the 
commercial position of the parties involved and would prejudice the position of 
the authority’s investments to the detriment of the Council’s ability properly to 
discharge its fiduciary and other duties as a public authority. 
 
Consequences If Proposed Action Not Approved 

 
23. Absence of these services to Carers in Oxfordshire will have a serious impact 

on support available to carers. The current contracts support in the region of 
6000 carers per year and are considered the main services to carers and a 
crucial part of prevention services the County Council invests in.  The services 
delivered by these contracts can not be delivered by any of our other 
contracts currently. 

 
24. The current contracts support the County Council in its duties under the 

Carers Equal Opportunities Act 2004 of promoting Carers Rights and reaching 
out to hidden and difficult to reach carers. The Council’s ability to fulfil our 
duties would be significantly impaired if the Oxfordshire Carers Centres 
ceased to exist. 

 
25. Support to Carers is identified as a key priority both to the County Council and 

in the Oxfordshire Local Area Agreement 2 and the absence of these services 
would have a major impact on our performance against agreed targets. 

 
 
 

Page 5



CMDAS4 
 
 

CMDASMAR0210R021.doc 

Legal Appraisal and Financial Appraisal 
 
A legal appraisal (Annex 2E) and Financial Appraisal (Annex 3E) have been 
undertaken and have been given limited circulation. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
The Cabinet Member for Adult Services is RECOMMENDED to approve 
an exemption from the tendering requirements of the County Council’s 
Contract Procedure Rules, to enable the Council to award a one-year 
extension of existing contracts to North & West Carers Centre, Oxford 
City Carers Centre and South and Vale Carers Centre, to 31 March 2011, 
in order to ensure service continuity, subject to a full tender process 
being carried out within the 1 year period of the interim contract. 

 
JOHN JACKSON 
Director for Social & Community Services 
 
Background Papers 
 
Contact Officers: John Pearce, Service Manager, Strategic Commissioning 

Tel: (01865) 323619 
Lajla Johansson, Services and Policy Development Manager 
Tel: (01865) 323622 

 
February 2010 
 

Page 6



Page 7

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Oxfordshire Carer's Centre
	Annexes 1E, 2E and 3E


